
LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
88 SOUTH PARK AVE.

LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
507-357-8538

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT A PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD.

DATE: NOVEMBER 10, 2016

TIME:  7:00 PM 

PLACE: LE SUEUR COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES BUILDING, 515 SOUTH MAPLE 
AVE, LE CENTER MN

PURPOSE: To hear testimony from interested parties and consider Rezoning and Conditional 
Use Permit Applications and other questions pertaining to and as provided by the Zoning 
Ordinance of Le Sueur County as described below.  Information regarding the applications is 
available for review at the Environmental Services Building during normal business hours.

ITEM #1 Planning and Zoning Commission Notice of Public Hearing 

ITEM #2 Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda 

ITEM #3 Novel Energy- Vetter  

ITEM #4 Le Sun LLC- Patrick Gregor CUP Extension 

ITEM #5 SWCD/Petersen 

ITEM #6 Planning and Zoning Ordinance Amendment 

ITEM #7 Approved November 10, 2016 Minutes 

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 1 / 47



APPLICANT OR REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT IN ORDER FOR THE APPLICATION TO BE HEARD.

KATHY BROCKWAY, LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
MICHELLE R. METTLER, ASSISTANT PLANNING & ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 2 / 47



Le Sueur County, MN
Thursday, November 10, 2016

Regular session

Item 1

Planning and Zoning Commission Notice of Public Hearing

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway or Michelle Mettler

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 3 / 47



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
88 SOUTH PARK AVE.

LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
507-357-8538

www.co.le-sueur.mn.us

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT A PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD.

DATE: NOVEMBER 10, 2016

TIME: 7:00 P.M.

PLACE: Le Sueur County Environmental Services, 515 South Maple Ave, Le Center, MN.

PURPOSE: To hear testimony from interested parties and consider Rezoning, Amendments and 
Conditional Use Permit Applications, as provided by the Zoning Ordinance of Le Sueur 
County, as described below.  

Applications are available for review at the Environmental Services Building during normal 
business hours and on the website on or after OCTOBER 31, 2016.

ITEM #1:  NOVEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS, ROCHESTER, MN (APPLICANT); BRIAN, 
KEVIN & TIMOTHY VETTER, KASOTA, MN (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional 
Use Permit to allow the applicant to construct a 1MW solar garden in an Agricultural “A” District.  Property is 
located in the SE1/4 SW1/4, Section 9, Kasota Township.  APPLICATION HAS BEEN WITHDRAWN.

ITEM #2: LESUN LLC, MINNEAPOLIS, MN (APPLICANT); PATRICK GREGOR, 
WASECA,  MN (OWNER): Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant 
an extension on Conditional Use Permit #15259 to establish a 5 MW solar farm in an Agriculture “A” District.  
Property is located in the SE 1/4, Section 26, Waterville Township.  

ITEM #3: LE SUEUR COUNTY SOIL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT (SWCD), 
LE CENTER, MN, (APPLICANT); DEAN & DOREEN PETERSON, MARSHAL, MN, (OWNER):  
Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling, of 
approximately 33 cubic yards of material for the construction of rip rap located in the shore impact zone in a 
Recreational Residential “RR” District on a Recreational Development “RD” lake, Lake Volney.  Property is 
located at Lot 2, Elwoods Subdivision, Section 1, Cordova Township. 

ITEM #4 LE SUEUR COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE REVISION: SECTION 25. 
ADMINISTRATION/PLANNING COMMISSION; SUBDIVISION 2. PLANNING COMMISSION:  
Change Planning Commission board members from eleven (11) members to seven (7) members.

APPLICANT OR REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT IN ORDER FOR THE APPLICATION TO BE HEARD.

KATHY BROCKWAY, LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
MICHELLE R. METTLER, ASSISTANT PLANNING & ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 4 / 47

http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us


Le Sueur County, MN
Thursday, November 10, 2016

Regular session

Item 1

Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway or Michelle Mettler

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 5 / 47



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
MEETING AGENDA

ORGANIZATION:  LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING/ZONING COMMISSION

MEETING DATE: NOVEMBER 10, 2016

MEETING PLACE: Le Sueur County Environmental Service 

Beginning Time: 7:00 P.M.    Ending Time: Approx. 8:30 P.M.

If you CANNOT be at the meeting, contact MINDY at 357-8538

AGENDA:              

Meeting Called
to Order.

ITEM #1:  NOVEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS, ROCHESTER, MN (APPLICANT); BRIAN, KEVIN & TIMOTHY 
VETTER, KASOTA, MN (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant to 
construct a 1MW solar garden in an Agricultural “A” District.  Property is located in the SE1/4 SW1/4, Section 9, 
Kasota Township.  APPLICATION HAS BEEN WITHDRAWN.

ITEM #2: LESUN LLC, MINNEAPOLIS, MN (APPLICANT); PATRICK GREGOR, WASECA,  MN 
(OWNER): Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant an extension on 
Conditional Use Permit #15259 to establish a 5 MW solar farm in an Agriculture “A” District.  Property is located in 
the SE 1/4, Section 26, Waterville Township.  

ITEM #3: LE SUEUR COUNTY SOIL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT (SWCD), LE CENTER, MN, 
(APPLICANT); DEAN & DOREEN PETERSON, MARSHAL, MN, (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling, of approximately 33 cubic yards of material for the 
construction of rip rap located in the shore impact zone in a Recreational Residential “RR” District on a Recreational 
Development “RD” lake, Lake Volney.  Property is located at Lot 2, Elwoods Subdivision, Section 1, Cordova 
Township. 

ITEM #4 LE SUEUR COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE REVISION: SECTION 25. ADMINISTRATION/PLANNING 
COMMISSION; SUBDIVISION 2. PLANNING COMMISSION:  Change Planning Commission board members from 
eleven (11) members to seven (7) members.

DISCUSSION;

MINUTES-WARRANTS           

ADJOURN 8:30 P.M.

Planning & Zoning Commission Public Hearing Procedure:  The Chairman calls the meeting to order, then calls the item to 
be heard and asks the Applicant or representative present to come to the podium to answer any questions or present any 
comments.  The Chairman opens the meeting to the public.  Each speaker comes to the podium and states their name for the 
record prior to making a statement or posing a question.  All questions or comments are to be directed to the board, NOT THE 
APPLICANT.  After the public comments the Planning Commission publicly discusses the information and reviews the findings 
before making a motion.  All meetings are recorded.

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 6 / 47



Le Sueur County, MN
Thursday, November 10, 2016

Regular session

Item 1

Novel Energy- Vetter 

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway or Michelle Mettler

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 7 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 8 / 47



Le Sueur County, MN
Thursday, November 10, 2016

Regular session

Item 2

Le Sun LLC- Patrick Gregor CUP Extension

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway or Michelle Mettler

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 9 / 47



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
88 SOUTH PARK AVE.

LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
December 15, 2015

MEMBERS PRESENT: Don,Reak, Jeanne Doheny, Don Rynda, Chuck Retka, Shirley 
Katzenmeyer, Steve Olson, Doug Krenik, Al Gehrke,Betty Bruzek, 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Pam Tietz

OTHERS PRESENT: Michelle Mettler, Kathy Brockway, Commissioner Connolly. 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM  by Chairperson, Jeanne Doheny.

ITEM #1: LE SUN LLC,  MINNEAPOLIS, MN (APPLICANT); PATRICK GREGOR, 
WASECA, MN (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 
applicant to establish up to 5MW Solar Farm on approximately 50 acres in an Agriculture “A” 
District.  Property is located in the Southeast 1/4 and Government Lot 6, Section 26, Waterville 
Township.  APPLICATION WAS TABLED AT THE NOVEMBER 12, 2015 MEETING.

Michelle Mettler presented the power point presentation.  Chuck Biesner, Sun Share was present 
for application.  

TOWNSHIP:  Notified through the application process. No comments. DNR:  N/A    LETTERS:  
none

PUBLIC COMMENT:  none

Discussion was held regarding: road location change, grading on-site will get approval prior to 
zoning permit, conditional use permit if required for grading, excavating and filling, height of 
panels, drainage, work with landowner for tile locations, tile map provided,  weed control, 
chemical used, native plantings, 2-3’ in height, mow once a year, mow more than spray noxious 
weeds, butterfly garden,  8’3” highest set, 15’ above grade at any highest point, grading to the 
west side of the property more than to the east, decommissioning plan, time frame, approximately 
60 days for construction process, bonding, letter of credit, interconnection agreement with Excel, 
signage, lighting, lockable gate, fencing 6’ maintenance free.

Findings by majority roll call vote: 

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in 
the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes 
and impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. Agreed

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in 
the area. Agreed

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are being 
provided.  Agreed

4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking 
and loading space to serve the proposed use. Agreed

5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, 
fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to 
control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to 
neighboring properties will result. Agreed

Motion was made by Doug Krenik to approve the application with the following conditions:

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 10 / 47



 8’ chain link fence;
 Apply for Conditional Use Permit for grading, excavating and filling if necessary;
 Copy of proof of interconnection agreement provided to the County;
 Stormwater Plan approved by the State prior to issuance of zoning permit;
 Bond provided to the County for decommissioning of the site.

Seconded by Al Gehrke.  Motion approved.  Motion carried.

ITEM #2: WINGE CONSTRUCTION, COON RAPIDS, MN, (APPLICANT); TAMARA 
KAPLAN, SAVAGE, MN, (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow the applicant to elevate the lowest floor of an existing dwelling to meet the Regulatory Flood 
Protection Elevation and meet FEMA general design standards in a Recreational Residential 
“RR” District and a Flood Plain Overlay Flood Fringe “FF” District on a Recreational Development 
Lake, Lake Frances.  Property is located at Lot 6, Dick’s Southside, Section 34, Elysian 
Township.  

Michelle Mettler presented power point presentation.  Jerry Winge, Winge Construction was 
present for application.  

TOWNSHIP: Notified through application process.  DNR:  notified through the application process 
and several emails sent. No response    LETTERS:  none

PUBLIC COMMENT:  none

Discussion was held regarding: raising house 32”, explained the construction process, pilasters, 
16x16 concrete blocks, hollow, not filled, able to hold water, install 2 sump pumps, install double 
drain tile, water has been an issue for years, house built in the late 60’s early 70’s, grade won’t 
change, adding steps and pervious pavers for patio and sidewalk, grading, excavating and filling 
to meet the zoning ordinance requirements, stone added up to bottom of siding, similar to parking 
ramp construction, traps to keep rodents out, venting if required, timeframe as soon as possible.

Findings by majority roll call vote: 

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. Agreed

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development 
and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area. Agreed

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are being 
provided. Agreed

4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and 
loading space to serve the proposed use. Agreed

5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, 
dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control 
lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring 
properties will result. Agreed

Motion was made by Don Reak to approve the application as written. Seconded by Betty Bruzek  
Motion approved.  Motion carried.

ITEM #3: CHRIS SHORT, PRIOR LAKE, MN, (APPLICANT/OWNER):  Requests that the 
County grant an After-The-Fact Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of 
approximately 2441 cubic yards of material to establish a site for a walkout basement in a Recreational 
Residential “RR” District on a Recreational Development “RD” lake, Lake Frances.  Property is located at 
Lot 3, Block 1, Han’s Hideaway, Section 27, Elysian Township.  

Michelle Mettler presented the power point presentation.  Chris Short was present for application.  

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 11 / 47



TOWNSHIP: Notified through the application process.  DNR/LETTERS:  Letter in file, No DNR 
violation on this property; Mike Schultz, No wetland Issues, Joshua Mankowski,  LSC Resource 
Specialist, Elysian State Bank, and Deanna Refsteck (email) see file.

PUBLIC COMMENT:  Roland Wagner, adjacent landowner, felt what was presented on the 
survey is not the same as what was being done, berm to the lake,  Mr. Short was upfront with 
them from the beginning, he wants to do what is right, miscommunications, good neighbor, 
supports the application.  Brian Barnett, Lake Francis Lake Association, Board of Directors, they 
are not in favor or against the application; Le Sueur County has ordinances that need to be 
followed, protect the lake. Lake Francis Association works hard to get information out to 
lakeshore owners, provides contacts for state, county, and city officials. Chris Short read an email 
he received from Randy Appel, not part of the record.

Discussion was held regarding: removal of material in order to get a solid foundation pad for 
construction of a new home, house is approximately 4000 sq. ft., area graded out is 7400 sq. ft.- 
normal building practices to do 10% over & the entire front is driveway, hauled in sandy material, 
did you do a compaction test-not sure, contractor should of known to stop-did the same on the 
adjacent lot 12 months ago, excessive amount of grading, length of driveway changed, turn 
around required, letter from the attorney states an engineered site plan was submitted for permit 
but the site plan was hand drawn,  why didn’t you build in the sloped area that would be 
conducive for a walkout, why not go through the appeal process with the Board of Adjustment-still 
an option & felt the conditional use permit process was faster, met on site with staff regarding tree 
removal, septic location, Michelle Mettler read Joshua Mankowski letter into the record, fees, 
penalties, difference in cubic yards from what the surveyor provided vs. the applicant and 
contractor, lengthy discussion in regards to the placement of the house on the lot, slab on grade 
vs. walkout, applicant would like to move forward with the project as presented, contractor should 
have stopped when doing the site prep due to inadequate slope for a walkout. Responsibility of 
Planning Commission is to abide by and enforce the zoning ordinance,  dream retirement home,  
natural buffers, house on slab, modified 2-story, conditional use permit requirements vs. zoning 
permit requirements, states on zoning permit-additional grading, excavating and filling may 
require a conditional use permit.

Findings by majority roll call vote: 

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property 
in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially 
diminishes and impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. Agreed.

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses 
predominant in the area. Agreed

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are 
being provided.  Agreed

4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide sufficient off-street 
parking and loading space to serve the proposed use.    Agreed

5. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive 
odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a 
nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no 
disturbance to neighboring properties will result. Agreed.

Motion was made by Al Gehrke to approve the application with a 15’ buffer strip along lakeshore.  
Seconded by Steve Olson.   Roll Call Vote; Don Reak-Nay, Chuck Retka-Nay, Betty Bruzek-Aye, 
Shirley Katzenmeyer-Nay, Jeanne Doheny-Nay, Steve Olson-Aye, Al Gehrke-Aye, Don Rynda-
Aye, Doug Krenik-Nay. 5-4 motion failed.

Motion was made by Doug Krenik to approve the application with Joshua Mankowski’s 
recommendation: 541 cubic yds of material excavated for site preparation, the 170 cu yds 

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 12 / 47



of material movement already done to construct the building pad and the 155 cu yds of 
material movement needed to complete the building pad.  This approval would allow for 
the construction of a slab-on-grade structure.  

A natural buffer is created along the shoreline and 15 feet inland from the lake to add 
protection and; Any future grading on site be kept to a minimum and conform to zoning 
ordinance requirements.   

Seconded by Shirley Katzenmeyer  Motion approved.  Motion carried.

Motion was made by Don Rynda to approve the minutes from the November 12, 2015 meeting by 
Seconded by Don Reak.  Motion approved.  Motion carried.

Motion to adjourn meeting by Chuck Retka.  Seconded by Shirley Katzenmeyer.  Motion 
approved.  Motion carried.

Meeting Adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

Michelle Mettler,
Kathy Brockway

Approved February 11, 2016

Tape of meeting is on file in the
Le Sueur County Environmental Services Office

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 13 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 14 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 15 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 16 / 47



Le Sueur County, MN
Thursday, November 10, 2016

Regular session

Item 3

SWCD/Petersen

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway or Michelle Mettler

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 17 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 18 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 19 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 20 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 21 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 22 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 23 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 24 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 25 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 26 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 27 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 28 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 29 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 30 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 31 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 32 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 33 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 34 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 35 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 36 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 37 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 38 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 39 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 40 / 47



Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 41 / 47



Le Sueur County, MN
Thursday, November 10, 2016

Regular session

Item 4

Planning and Zoning Ordinance Amendment

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway or Michelle Mettler

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 42 / 47



10-13-16

SECTION 25. ADMINISTRATION/PLANNING COMMISSION

SUBDIVISION 1. COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR

A. The office of the County Planning and Zoning Administrator is hereby established, for which 
the Board of County Commissioners may appoint an Administrator and such other personnel 
necessary to discharge the duties of the Department.

B. The duties of the Department shall include the following:

1. Be in direct administration of the Zoning Ordinance, Shoreland Regulations, Flood Plain 
Regulations, Feedlot Regulations, Subsurface Sewage Treatment System Regulations, 
and the Subdivision Ordinance.  

2. Enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance.  If the Department finds a violation of the 
provisions of this Ordinance they shall notify the person responsible for such violation in 
accordance with the procedures stated in this Ordinance.

3. Issue zoning permits and any other permits as required by the terms of this Ordinance.

4. Receive and forward all applications, documents and actions to the Board of County 
Commissioners, Planning Commission, Board of Adjustment and other appropriate 
agencies as required or appropriate by State of Minnesota Statutes. 

5. Keep or supervise the keeping of all necessary records.  

6. Act as secretary to the Board of Adjustment and also act as advisor to the Planning 
Commission.

7. Provide and maintain a public information bureau relative to matters of the Zoning 
Ordinance, Shoreland Regulations, Flood Plain Regulations, Feedlot Regulations, 
Subsurface Sewage Treatment System Regulations, and the Subdivision Ordinance.  

8. Report on a regular basis to the Board of County Commissioners the recommendations, 
findings and decisions of the Planning Commission, boards and committees for final 
action where necessary.

SUBDIVISION 2. PLANNING COMMISSION

A. The Board of County Commissioners hereby establishes the Planning Commission. Such 
Planning Commission shall consist of eleven (11) seven (7) members appointed by the 
Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners and ratified by the Board of County 
Commissioners.

B. No more than four (4) members shall be residents of the incorporated communities of          
Le Sueur County.

25-1

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 43 / 47



10-13-16

C. The term of each member shall coincide with the term of the Commissioners District in 
which they represent. 

D. Each member may be eligible for reappointment at the discretion of the Board of County 
Commissioners. 

E. No more than one (1) voting member of the Planning Commission shall be an officer or 
employee of the County.

F. The Board of County Commissioners may designate any county officer or employee as an 
ex officio member of the Planning Commission.

G. The Board of County Commissioners may call for the removal of any Planning Commission 
member for non-performance of duty or misconduct in office.

H. Should any vacancy occur among the members of this Planning Commission by reason of 
death, resignation, disability or otherwise, immediate notice thereof shall be given to the 
Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners by the Department. Should any vacancy 
occur among the members of the Planning Commission, the vacancy shall be filled in 
accordance with the bylaws of this Subdivision, such member to serve the unexpired term of 
the office in which such vacancy shall occur.

I. The members of the Planning Commission may be compensated in an amount as determined 
by the Board of County Commissioners

J. The Board of County Commissioners may assign additional duties and responsibilities to the 
Planning Commission by this Ordinance. The Planning Commission may also be required to 
review or develop any comprehensive plans or official controls which will aid in the future 
planning and development within the County, upon the direction of the Board of County 
Commissioners.

25-2

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 44 / 47



Le Sueur County, MN
Thursday, November 10, 2016

Regular session

Item 1

Approved November 10, 2016 Minutes

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway or Michelle Mettler

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 45 / 47



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
88 SOUTH PARK AVE.

LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
November 10, 2016

MEMBERS PRESENT: Jeanne Doheny, Don Rynda, Chuck Retka, Shirley Katzenmeyer, Doug Krenik, Al 
Gehrke, Betty Bruzek, Pam Tietz

MEMBERS ABSENT: Don Reak, Steve Olson

OTHERS PRESENT: Kathy Brockway, Commissioners  Connolly and Wetzel.

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm by Chairperson, Jeanne Doheny.

ITEM #1:  NOVEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS, ROCHESTER, MN (APPLICANT); BRIAN, KEVIN & 
TIMOTHY VETTER, KASOTA, MN (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow the applicant to construct a 1MW solar garden in an Agricultural “A” District.  Property is located in the 
SE1/4 SW1/4, Section 9, Kasota Township.  APPLICATION HAS BEEN WITHDRAWN.

Kathy Brockway presented power point presentation. 

Motion was made by Doug Krenik to approve the withdrawal request.  Seconded by Pam Tietz.  Motion approved.  
Motion carried.

ITEM #2: LESUN LLC, MINNEAPOLIS, MN (APPLICANT); PATRICK GREGOR, WASECA,  MN 
(OWNER): Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow the applicant an extension on 
Conditional Use Permit #15259 to establish a 5 MW solar farm in an Agriculture “A” District.  Property is located 
in the SE 1/4, Section 26, Waterville Township.  

Kathy Brockway presented power point presentation.  Izaak Sunleaf representing SunShare was present for 
application.  

Discussion:  Izaak Sunleaf explained reason why the project was not completed per the conditional use permit time 
frame.  The project was delayed due to a protracted engineering study process with Xcel Energy.  The initial 
interconnection study results from Xcel were to limit the size of the project. Due to a difference in the methodology 
and extensive discussions with Xcel, SunShare filed a formal complaint with the Public Utility Commission (PUC) 
seeking a third party decision. The PUC came to the same conclusion as SunShare in May of 2016. 

Motion was made by Chuck Retka to approve the extension for 1-yr. Seconded by Al Gehrke.  Motion approved.  
Motion carried.

ITEM #3: LE SUEUR COUNTY SOIL & WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT (SWCD), LE 
CENTER, MN, (APPLICANT); DEAN & DOREEN PETERSON, MARSHAL, MN, (OWNER):  Request that 
the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling, of approximately 33 cubic 
yards of material for the construction of rip rap located in the shore impact zone in a Recreational Residential “RR” 
District on a Recreational Development “RD” lake, Lake Volney.  Property is located at Lot 2, Elwoods 
Subdivision, Section 1, Cordova Township. 

Kathy Brockway  presented power point presentation.  Mike Schultz, LSC Soil and Water Conservation District 
representative and Bryan Peitzel, I&S Engineering were present for application.  

TOWNSHIP: Ron Schmidt, Cordova Township per phone call, township has no objections to the project. Butch 
Krocak, Lexington Township, township has no objections to the project.  DNR:   No comments- applicant 
working with the DNR.   Letters:  Joshua Mankowski, LSC Resource Specialist (see file)
   
PUBLIC COMMENT:  No comments

Discussion was held regarding: project is to provide shoreline protection, previous flooding issues and wave action 
have contributed to the shoreline erosion problem, installation of field stone and turf reinforcement mat will be 
placed along the shoreline for a total of 66 ft. The field stone will range from 6-30”, all disturbed areas will be 
vegetated.  DNR permit was issued for work below the ordinary high water level.
Project will take 1-2 days to complete, depends on weather.

Findings by majority roll call vote: 

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 46 / 47



1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs 
property values within the immediate vicinity. Agreed

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area. Agreed

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided. Agreed

4. Adequate measures will be taken to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use. Not applicable

5. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and 
vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other 
lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. Agreed

6. Is the Conditional Use Permit consistent with and supported by the statement of purposes, 
policies, goals and objectives in the Ordinance? Agreed

7. Is the Conditional Use Permit consistent with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan? Agreed

Motion was made by Shirley Katzenmeyer to approve the application as requested.  Seconded by Chuck Retka.  
Motion approved.  Motion carried.

ITEM #4 LE SUEUR COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE REVISION: SECTION 25. 
ADMINISTRATION/PLANNING COMMISSION; SUBDIVISION 2. PLANNING COMMISSION:  Change 
Planning Commission board members from eleven (11) members to seven (7) members.

PUBLIC COMMENT:  none

Discussion was held regarding: 11 members provides good representation of all commissioner districts, reducing the 
number of members from 11 to 7 limits the diversity of input as a result of limited members, challenges of meeting a 
quorum for meetings, minimal cost savings, when contentious issues come up, good to have a broad group for back 
and forth discussions, expertise in different areas such as, drainage, lakeshore issues, agricultural, business, 
residential, commitment to planning commission.

Motion was made by Betty Bruzek to retain eleven members to serve on the planning commission.    Seconded by 
Doug Krenik. Motion approved.  Motion carried.

Motion was made by Shirley Katzenmeyer to approve the minutes from the October 13, 2016 meeting by Seconded 
by Don Rynda.  Motion approved.  Motion carried.

Motion to adjourn meeting by Chuck Retka.  Seconded by Al Gehrke.  Motion approved.  Motion carried.

Meeting Adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,
Kathy Brockway for
Shirley Katzenmeyer.

Approved December 8, 2016
Tape of meeting is on file in the

Le Sueur County Environmental Services Office

Le Sueur County Regular session - 11/10/2016 Page 47 / 47


